MINUTES

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING
MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2023, AT 6:00 P.M.

CITY OF ST. AUGUSTINE BEACH, 2200 AlA South, 5t. Augustine Beach, FL 32080

VI,

VII.

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Samora called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Commission recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Present: Mayor Donald Samora, Vice Mayor Dylan Rumrell, and Commissioners Undine C. George,
Beth Sweeny, and Virginia Morgan.

Also present were City Manager Max Royle, City Attorney Jeremiah Blocker, Police Chief Daniel
Carswell, City Clerk Dariana Fitzgerald, Finance Director Patty Douylliez, Building Official Brian
Law, Public Works Director Ken Gatchell, and Engineering Director Jason Sparks.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING ON JULY 10, 2023

Motion: To approve the minutes of regular Commission meeting on July 10, 2023. Moved by Vice
Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by Commissioner Sweeny. Motion passed unanimously.

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS OF THE AGENDA

Vice Mayor Rumrell asked to move Item X.111.9 to the September 11, 2023, meeting because his
agenda book did not contain all the information and he was only provided with it when he arrived
tonight.

It was the consensus of the Commission to move ltem X.111.9 to the September 11, 2023, meeting.

CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF TOPICS ON THE AGENDA

There were none.

Mayor Samora moved on to ltem VIl to atlow time for the presentation of Item VIL.A to be emailed
to the Commission and for the PowerPoint presentation to be set up.

PRESENTATIONS

Update Report on 2023-24 Beach Restoration Project by Mr. Jason Harrah, U.5. Army Corps of
Engineers

Jason Harrah, U.S. Army Corps Project Manager, presented a PowerPoint on the updated status
of the 5t. Augustine Beach project [Exhibit A]. He summarized the history of the project and said



that it was authorized in 1999 with the initial construction from 2001-2003 and we are on our
fourth renourishment in 2023, The renourishments are typically done about every five years, but
they could be done sooner if there is a hurricane event that is declared by the President as a
“Stafford Act”, which are 100% Federally funded. The estimated cost of this renourishment
project is around $40 million, which is 100% Federal from the results of Hurricanes lan and Nicole.
He said that there are approximately twenty-three coastal projects throughout the State of
Fiorida and that most major beaches are manufactured with sand coming from somewhere
offshare, such as an inlet, which they recycle and put on adjacent beaches every year. He advised
that the projects require a non-Federal sponsor and that the St. lohns County Board of
Commissioners is sponsoring this project. He said that another key point is that the project
remains authorized for fifty years, or to 2053, and it would remain authorized in perpetuity, which
means that any emergency under the Stafford Act would be renourished. However, to get
renourishment every five years, you would need to do a new report to get on the regular cycle.
He advised that renourishments happen every five years for this particular area based on the
erosion rate. The cost share for this project is B0.5% Federal and 19.5% non-Federal for a standard
renourishment every five years but that this project qualified for emergency work under the
Staford Act, which is what we are doing now. The commitment from the County as the sponsor is
that they are required to work with the City to maintain the beach during the years that have no
renourishment projects.

Mr. Harrah showed a snapshot of the project, and he pointed out the Department of
Environmental Protection Range Monuments (DEP R Monuments), which is how the State looks
at beaches and this project goes from DEP R-137 in Anastasia State Park down to DEP R-150 near
the St. Augustine Ocean and Racquet Resort. He pointed out two areas that they could get the
sand from. One area is the ebb shoal near Porpoise Point, which is a source that continually fills
in and they use it every other renourishment. The other area is farther south shown in the black
box, which is a borrowing source that is seven miles offshore in Federal waters that is being used
far this project. He described how it works using a hopper dredge, which is like a giant vacuum
cleaner, with two big prongs that go down to the seabed and suck up the sand into the belly of
the ship. The ship goes about 2,500 feet offshore and connects to a submerged pipeline where
water and sand get pumped to the beach while bulldozers are waiting to conform the sand into
whatever elevations we give them. The hopper dredge will typically make four or five passes a
day, 24/7. He said that environmental monitoring is in accordance with the National
Environmental Policy Act in Florida for such things as sea turtles, nesting shore birds, right whales,
manatees, etc., and in the event of a sighting, everything shuts down until the animal naturally
makes its way out of the area. He advised that we are in the middie of sea turtle nesting season,
and they have a relocation expert authorized by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission to
relocate the nests to several unadvertised locations due to predation to try keep the animals
away.

Mr. Harrah moved on to a graphic overview of the three-mile project and the borrow area
offshore. He said that there is a group called the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, which
would approve all offshore oil exploration or wind energy farms and they are very critical of how
sand is taken from that borrow area. He showed the northern limit of the project, and pointed
out that the sand would be placed at the landward edge of the fill limit, and it would be filled in
toward the seaward top, or the berm, then it tapers down to the “toe of fill”, which goes from the
dune line all the way out into the ocean. He said that people get upset because we are putting so
much sand near the pier, which leaves them nowhere to fish. The sand is placed about 400 feet
off the edge of Embassy Suites out into the ocean and will sit that way for about three or four
months, which wilt leave the pier somewhat landlocked, but we do it that way because it is one
of the most erosive areas along the east coast of Florida. If we did not fill it up as much as we



could, then in a month or two the Embassy Suites and Pier area would not have sand again. The
sand will work its way south under the pier over the next several months and fill in the areas.
Mayor Samora asked what height it gets built to. Mr, Harrah said 9.5 feet and that he had a graphic
that he would show. He said that the hopper dredge would be staged out in the middle of the
ocean and all the equipment would be stored on Pope Road, which would have the access closed
off when the contractor arrives. He advised that there is not a huge need for sand south of A
Street because the nine-foot tie in is right near that. He said that A Street would not be used for
staging, only for access to bring in their equipment initially and that it would not be kept closed
off. He said that the berm is roughly four hundred feet and that they would be putting out a ton
of sand to maximize it to try to get through a couple of seasons before they have to come back.

Commissioner Sweeny asked if A Street would be shut down at all. Mr. Harrah advised that
typically they try to bring equipment in at night when there is not as much traffic and would not
need to close the street.

Vice Mayor Rumrell asked when the next renourishment project would be since this is just a one-
time thing. Mr. Harrah said that the way that they have been getting hit, they have been doing
the beaches every year now. He said that he hopes that enough sand is being put out and that
mother nature gives us a break and that they wouldn’t be back until 2028-2029.

Mr. Harrah showed a cross section and he pointed out that the dotted line is the eroded beach
that their survey crews say it looks like right now. The design that was authorized by Congress
tells us to build the beach to an elevation of 9.5 feet, which is the height that the Mayor asked
about. He pointed out that the hash-marked area is the fill volume that gets placed with a lot of
it below the water because the near shore sand makes its way back to the beach. He moved on
to the next slide and said that dune walkovers would have four or five steps buried up to the nine-
foot contour and that they would be hand-shoveled to pack the sand arcund them to give it a
solid beach fill across the three-mile template.

Mr. Harrah moved on to the schedule and pricing and said that it was advertised on July 25, 2023,
but that there was a delay getting the money. When Hurricanes lan and Nicole went up the coast,
there were forty projects from here to New Jersey that qualified for emergency assistance, but
we finally got the funds, and the bid opening will be on August 25, 2023. He advised that sea turtle
nest relocations would start on August 28" because they are required to move them sixty-five
days before any piece of equipment is on the beach. He advised that the contract would be
awarded on September 29" and the Notice to Proceed will be issued on October 29%, which is
important because the Embassy Suites should be installing a seawall, which should be completed
by October 15%. He advised that the contractor would begin mobilization on Novernber 1% with
an anticipated completion date of June 30, 2024, which would give us about two hundred and
sixty-five days to complete the project, which will put down 2.5 million cubic yards of sand. He
advised that there would be tilling done, environmental and vibration monitoring, as well as a
structural engineer that would walk the beach to make sure that there is no damage.

Mr. Harrah said that it is extremely important to be open and transparent with the public for these
types of projects and that he would work with the City Manager as they get closer to upcoming
events, such as New Year’s Eve. He said that the contractor would fikely shut down a day ar two
for New Year’s Eve and they would try to work around wedding events, etc. but they get paid to
run 24/7, soif they are shut down for a day, it costs about $150,000 to $200,000 to be on standby,
50 we want to keep them moving and get them in and out as quickly as possible. He said that the
Corps does its community connections through Twitter, Facebook, etc. and that they will publish
maps every week with the contractor updates such as the one shown in the slide that showed
different colors for different stages of the project {i.e., green for completed, orange forthe current
working area, blue for the areas that still need to be constructed). He said that the information is

3



put on their social media, and it alsc goes out to the press. If you live on a certain street in the
project area, you could lock at the map and see when they would be working in your area within
a two-week window. He moved on and said that you could expect the contractors to bring in their
equipment, pipes, etc. and that Pope Road will be closed off and that A Street would just be for
offloading as quickly as possible and would remain open. They will work 24/7 and there will be
backup alarms, lights, noise, etc. because it is too expensive to ask them to only work between
9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. The contractor will only shut down about 1,000-to-2,000-foot sections of
the beach at a time with orange fencing around the area and utilize the local law enforcement to
try to keep people out of that zone. He said that the surfers seem to want to surf the breaks right
off the pipe area and that the contractors will typically contract with the local law enforcement
to help with that effort. Once the surveyor says that it is pumped to the nine-foot elevation, they
move to the next 1,500-foot section. He said that the progress maps wouid be updated on social
media and that they would tag the St. Augustine Beach community to share the posts.

Mr. Harrah moved on and said that after the project is complete, the beach will naturally reshape
and escarpments will form, which the contractors will knock down initially but afterwards it is the
responsibility of the sponsor to remove and maintain the beach template after construction.

Commissioner George said that June 30, 2024, is the deadline and she asked when he expected
completion if all goes well without major delays. Mr. Harrah advised that Vilano Beach just got
awarded 1.3 million cubic yards, which is about half the size of this project. It has a completion
deadline of April 2024, and the contractor is telling them that they will be done by October 31,
2023. He said that he would estimate that they could be done as soon as February or March 2024
but not to hold him to that.

Mayor Samora asked how long it would take to de-mobilize after completion. Mr. Harrah said
thirty days. He said that he would be happy to take anyone that wants toc go out to the
construction area to look at it and take pictures, etc.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comment.

Nick Binder, 232 Big Magnelia Court, St. Augustine Beach, FL, said that originally the sand
replenishment was supposed to go to and through Ocean Hammaock Park; that someone has been
adding sand south of the Park; now there seems to be a void from A Street to the Park and that
someone should look at that stretch of beach to see if any sand needs to be replenished like what
has been done from Sea Colony down to Ocean Trace and Dondanville Road.

Mayor Samora advised that they did evaluate it and it was in the scope of their project but after
the evaluation, they said that sand was not needed. Mr. Harrah said that when beach projects
come up, a full survey is done to see where the 9.5-foot contour is. He said that everything south
of A Street had an elevation of about nine feet with the exception of a few sporadic spots, which
were not significant enough to continue the placement. He advised that they were authorized to
do it down to Ocean Hammock Park, but based on the elevations, the sand was not needed in
that area. Vice Mayor Rumrell said that he believed that Mr. Binder was talking about the dune
enhancement project that is going on by St. lohns County.

Damon Douglas, St. Johns County Coastal Manager, advised that unfortunately Federal money
cannot touch each other, so there was a FEMA funded project, which is in the Army Corps project
area. He said that even if they are not actually putting sand all the way to the end of it, there was
nothing they could do to bring it into that project. However, all the sand that will be put at the
pier will move mostly to the south so that part of the beach will get an extra layer of protection
from this project.

Vice Mayor Rumrell asked if he would talk a little about the dune enhancement project that is
going on. Mr. Douglas advised that it has moved from Hammock Dunes Park through Dondanville

4



VI,

Road and has now left there, and they are setting up at Mary Street and will be doing about two
thousand feet south of Mary Street, then that segment will be wrapped up. He said that they
would be advertising in the near future for construction bids to do a section in Crescent Beach
down towards the Matanzas Ramp, which has a little over a mile that is severely eroded as well
as a couple of areas in Ponte Vedra near the two access points.

Commissioner Sweeny asked if this project was why the A Street access has been closed off. Mr.
Douglas said yes but that it has since reopened. Mayor Samora asked if people can get on the
beach at Ocean Trace Road or is it just exit only. Mr. Douglas said now that the Dondanville Road
access has been recpened, that, if not today, then within the next few days, that Ocean Trace
Road would have access again as well. Mayor Samora asked if planting sea oats was part of the
project. Mr. Douglas advised that they are being planted now. Mayor Samora asked if planting
sea oats was part of the Corps project as well. Mr. Harrah said no. Mr. Douglas said that this older
authorization was back when they thought that sea oats were unsightly and not a great idea. He
advised that they have partnered with the City Manager in the past to plant sea oats and will
continve to do so. He said that with all the sand that the Corps put there, the sea oats catch it and
make great dunes that we have here now, so it is working so far. Mayor Samora said that maybe
we need to start working on another sea oats project. City Manager Royle said that it is in the
works after the Corps finishes this project.

Mayor Samoa moved forward to ltem IX.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Susan Brady, 121 14'" Street, St. Augustine Beach, FL, asked that the budget have money for the
pumps if they break; a prior public speaker at the July Commission meeting expressed his
disagreement of the Pride Proclamation, which was unanimously approved; reminded everyone
that that speaker does not speak for her or the citizens of the City; the City leaders who were
voted in by the majority of the citizens speak for us; we are grateful of our first amendment right
of free speech, and that he did not have the right to shame a child that was exhibiting her right to
free expression and she should be applauded for her bravery; the Declaration of Independence
states that, “we hold these truths to be self-evident, that alf men are created equal and that they
are endowed by their creator with certain unalienable rights that among these are life, liberty, and
the pursuit of happiness”; it states all men, not some men; she has been a special education
teacher for over twenty years and has seen her share of unwanted children; she has witnessed
them in foster care waiting for their forever home and they have had a difficult life; has witnessed
gay and lesbian couples willing to open up their homes and hearts to those children and has
watched them thrive with the love and support that they are given; applauded our City
Commission for supporting all citizens and protecting the goals of unity, freedom, and individual
rights that were established and signed in 1776 by our founding fathers.

Nick Binder, 232 Big Magnolia Court, 5t. Augustine Beach, FL, has no disagreement with the
variances that were granted for the Regency Shopping Center but implementation of the
discussions would take some time; one thing deals with ground water flow and another thing
deals with loading docks; when you move the loading docks back to the property line ten feet it
would take away that vegetation on the northern side, which was soundproofing, then you have
to move additional feet to put the barrier in; recommended that staff look at the barrier near the
loading dock as a sound barrier wall as negotiations go on; no one has discussed the hours of
operation for deliveries at the loading dock; many refrigerated trucks stay running while they are
being unloaded; there are neighbors close by and roughly fifteen feet of vegetation would be
removed on the northern side and part of it should be a sound barrier wall; the engineer admitted
that not all the ground water flow from Regency Center stayed on their property and the direction



it flows is toward State Road AlA; staff should look at the existing retention pond at AlA to see if
it needs to be rehabilitated and check the carrying capacity of State Road AlA storm sewers to
see if they can handle the additional flow.

George O'Brien, & 10™ Street, St. Augustine Beach, FL, is a real estate investor with a few
properties at the beach and also a SEPAC member; suggested that the City should have
conversations with people who actually use e-bikes; he uses one, has three young children, and it
is dangerous because nobody pays attention; does not ride his e-bike on the beach vehicle lane
because the sand is too soft, so you need to ride them closer to the water and he cannot ride
during high tide because of beach erosion; suggested to have conversations with e-bike users and
retailers before the ordinance is put into place, which may jeopardize someone’s lifestyle; e-bike
rental companies should have the responsibility to inform renters of the rules, speeding, helmets,
etc.; asked the City not to jump to conclusions or jump to an ordinance that could affect a lot of
people that enjoy using them on the beach for recreation, health and wellness; people who live
on the island use the bikes respectfully and he rarely takes his bike to the beach on the weekends
because he knows that it is packed with people and that he drops his speed when approaching
children; the renters do not understand or respect some of those things and that the City should
reach out to those shop owners and form a small committee, which he would be happy to help
with to create an ordinance that is fair and safe for everyone.

Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that Chief Carswell may have an update on the e-bike ordinance.
Chief Carswell advised that the week after we spoke about the ordinance in the Commission
meeting, the County Beach Services sent him their proposed Beach Code, which would have an
update for e-bikes on the beach and it would be conflicting with what we were going to do. He
said that with our jurisdictions being so close and after talking with the City Manager and several
other people, we would adopt the County Beach Code, which we have done in the past. He said
that the County’s ordinance would specify no reckless operation by e-bikes on the sand, which
would not limit where they could ride, just the manner of operation, and that they also detailed
the definition of “reckless”. He advised that he would probably have an update next month.

Mayor Samera asked if the County already adopted that ordinance. Chief Carswell said no and
that they are in the process of doing an update to the entire Beach Code, nothing is in place right
now, and that all of the City’s beach ordinances go through the County’s Beach Code and would
continue to do so. He said that he would follow up to find out when the County plans to adopt
the new Code. Mayor Samora said that it would be nice to be able to provide some resources for
our censtituents that want to weigh in on it, other than directing them to the County’s website.
Chief Carswell advised that it came from Beach Services and that they asked for the Beach Police
Department’s feedback about it.

Kiran Pamar, 16 A Street, St. Augustine Beach, FL, thanked the City and the County for finally fixing
the A Street flooding issue; has concerns about the e-bikes and would like to see the detail of
what is being proposed to figure out the right thing to do because the e-bikes are here to stay and
it will grow and safety is a big issue; has five e-bikes, takes people on tours, and they love it and
he wants to be able to maintain that by using the right venues with safety.

Mayor Samora closed Public Comment.

Mayor Samora asked everyone to stay tuned for more information from the Chief and that the
City would follow the lead of the County for the e-bikes.

Mayor Samora moved back to Item VILA.

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS




Commissioner Morgan said that she asked the City Manager about the possibility of leaving the
paper copy of the reports out of the agenda books and only have digital copies. They create an
extra fifty or more pages in the books, and we could save a lot of paper by not having to print
them and to have them emailed instead. Mayor Samora said that it would not affect him.
Commissioner Sweeny said that she would be fine with not printing them because she normally
reads the agenda book online. Vice Mayor Rumrell said that he liked having the paper, but that
he would be fine with it. Commissioner George said that she preferred having the paper version
but that she also tries to archive so she can go back to reference them. She suggested only printing
the paper reports for those that want them. Mayor Samora asked the City Clerk if that would be
possible. City Clerk Fitzgerald advised that the books could be customized within reason. Mayor
Samora said that he heard two Commissioners want the paper reports to continue in their agenda
books, and three without the reports. Commissioner Morgan said that she still wanted to read
the reports but only in digital format.

Vice Mayor Rumrell gave a shoutout to the Coast Guard and St. Johns County Fire Rescue for
finding Mr. Gregory twelve miles offshore.

Commissioner George advised that she attended the Marsh Creek Homeowners’ Association
Board meeting, and she laid out all the background infermation for the possibility of a traffic
signal. She said that there seemed to be more people that were interested vs. being opinionated
one way or another. She said that there was a strong expression of no support from some of the
Board members. She advised that she would follow up again to see if they wanted more
information or if they want to take a position but at this time, she does not have a formal position
from them. She expects that the option of any involvement would slowly dissipate.

Commissioner Sweeny said that she saw that the Jacksonville Transit Authority is holding some
workshops regarding bring a commuter rail to town with one of the proposed stops near State
Road 312 and that this could be an opportunity for the City to stay engaged because people could
potentially use that to visit the beach. She suggested that the City should work in conjunction with
them on some sort of transport system from the rail statien to the beach. There have also been
discussions about working with the City of St. Augustine regarding expanding their circulator bus
from downtown to the beach. She suggested that the City should stay engaged on those issues.
City Manager Royle agreed. Mayor Samora agreed that it was a good point.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item X.1. and he asked the City Attorney for his comments. City
Attorney Blocker advised that this is Quasi-Judicial hearing, and he asked if there were any ex-
parte disclosures. There were none.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Reguest for Conditional Use Permit to Construct a Single Family Residence in a Commercial Land
Use District at 14 D Street {Lot 15, Block 36, Coquina Gables Subdivision) {Presenter: Brian Law,
Building Official)

Building Official Law advised that this is a Conditional Use to build a single-family residence in the
commercial sector. He showed an aerial map of 14 D Street [Exhibit B] and said there is an existing
house there and the applicant is here to discuss it. He said that the Planning and Zoning Board's
recommendations were to approve the Conditional Use and to construct it as we have been doing
in the past few years and to treat it as a medium density zone with the restrictions that apply. He
said that the Board made a recommendation to the Commission that the residence should not
exceed two stories, He said that in his six years with the City, he had not seen that done yet and
that it was a healthy debate because it was not based on a Code, it was a preference.




Mayor Samora asked if anyone from the Planning and Zoning Board was in attendance. Building
Official Law said no. Mayor Samora invited the applicant to the podium.

Scott Patrou, 460 A1lA Beach Blvd., St. Augustine Beach, FL, Representative for the property
owner. He said that the property is at the corner of D Street and A1A Beach Boulevard, next to
one of the City’s parkettes. He said that it is already an existing residence, so it is not a change of
use and there is residential beside it and across from it, so it is consistent with the neighborhood.
He said that he believed that the existing house was built in 1968 and they were looking to
demolish the house and built another one. He said that part of the submittal requirements was
to submit a plan and a two-story plan was submitted. He said he had discussions with the property
owner and told him that the City preferred not having big three-story buildings close to the
Boulevard. This property is off the Boulevard, but in consideration of the City's preference, he
submitted a two-story plan, which he has built here before. He advised that his daughter is going
off to college this year and he hoped that when she returned that it would be the house she would
return to. He said that they had to include it in the Planning and Zoning Board meeting and there
was a lot of discussion about how to create these restrictions. He said that as an attorney, he gets
really anxious when we try to impose these strange Quasi-restrictions when there is a substantial
Building Code in place. He advised that the submission of the two-story plan was in good faith and
what makes him nervous is that they are trying to create some rules that the Building Department
would then have to overlay on top of the existing Building Code, which is pretty robust and
outlines all the conditions for medium density zoning. He said his request would be for this to be
approved and he had not received any indication that there was intent to change from the two-
story plan that was submitted. He said that he would not want to be in a scenario twelve or
fourteen months down the road when they are going into zoning to then have to resolve
something that did not need to be more complicated than it was. This seemed pretty straight
forward given its current situation and where it is and that he would be happy to address any
questions.

Commissioner Morgan questioned what the total height would be. Mayor Samora said that there
is no formal plan yet, just a conceptual plan. Mr. Patrou advised that it would still fall under the
“not to exceed” and that the current plan showed a twenty-eight-foot height. Mayor Samora
advised that it would still need to follow the thirty-five foot rule regardless.

Commissioner Sweeny said that she realized these are conceptual drawings and asked if they
would elevate the lot because it looked like there were some swales along the sides. Mr. Patrou
said that he did not believe so, this was a house plan that they have built before, and you see
where it comes up and that he did not believe that it had any correlation to the lot elevation. He
said that they purchased the lot and they wanted to make sure that they could do it before they
had all the formal plans drawn. It is an existing plan that they built in St. Augustine Beach, but that
those elevations and things do not correlate. Commissioner Sweeny said that she was concerned
about storm runoff with neighboring properties and that she recognized that the east side has a
parkette there. Building Official Law advised that when a single-family residence or commercial
structure comes in for permitting, it gets evaluated by Zoning first thing, which would question
such things as whether it could be built, if it meets the lot coverage Impervious Surface Ratio (ISR},
and in conjunction with that, we perform lot grading reviews. In Chapter 6 of the City’s Land
Development Regulations (LDRs) it specifically mentions that a building height is limited to one
foot above the crown of the road or one foot above natural grade. He advised that this is an
existing property and that they are not expecting any issues with height and that stormwater gets
evaluated during the permitting phase, which is followed by a lot-grading inspection to make sure
that it is in line with the approved site pian. He said that they do not allow water to shed onto
other properties such as the neighbor to the west. He said that the City is becoming what he calls
“the tand of infill lots” where each property is becoming substantially more difficult to develop

8



without the use of permanent retaining walls, so swales are coming back in as a development
tool. He advised that he looked at one the other day and that they had to put in a little berm even
though the yard had historically always drained across the other yard, we just cannot accept it
once we put a house there. He advised that surveys would be submitted, the house would be
demolished, etc., which would all be handled during permitting.

Commissioner George said that if the runoff is not properly accounted for and the lane behind it
is low, which the water comes out and floods it as well as the older neighboring structure, then
what kind of remedy is there from the City’s perspective. Building Official Law said that they would
then get creative, such as using gutters, which are becoming really popular. He said that with the
City’s narrow lots, we do not have twenty feet for the water to dissipate, so instead of using
gutters with a downspout twelve feet out, they are going underground and piping it to a more
convenient spot. He said that they have also done a few with onsite stormwater storage using
swales from natural depressions in the yard. He said that if they ever have a lot that is beyond
them, they always reserve the right to consult with a design professional and they would also
contact Public Works and the City Engineer. Commissioner George asked if there was really any
opportunity to have that engagement with the property owner after the permit had been closed.
Building Official Law said that after the house has its Certificate of Occupancy {CO) it becomes a
civil matter. Commissioner George said that the City’s only remedy would be just for the water
running off a City lane/road for instance. Building Official Law said that the water needs to go
somewhere and that it traditionally drains to the public ways. He said that in this case with the
house that is proposed, it is clearly a hip-roof, and they would probably require gutters on alt four
sides, then choose where the water comes off the roof. He said that every effort is made and that
they have Public Works and Engineering to support them.

Commissioner Sweeny said that since there were no Planning and Zoning Board members here
and she did not see their meeting minutes in the agenda packet, she asked what the opposition
was. Building Offictal Law advised that the opposition was that they did not want the second story
lkmit, they wanted three stories because that is the way that we have always done it. He said we
continually put the provision that it must meet the medium density zoning districts. He said that
if you read the Code the way that it is written that it would allow development in the commercial
sector, even a single-family residence, to have a seventy percent Impervious Surface Ratio {ISR).
He advised that he stopped that in 2018 by saying that all development shall be in accordance
with the medium density. He said that you are asking to build a single-family residence, so you
should not be awarded that extra ISR that commercial facilities need for parking. He said that is
one of their big reasons and that it also deals with setbacks because this is a small, platted lot, so
the setbacks would be seven and a half feet on the sides, twenty feet in the rear, and twenty-five
in the front,

Mayor Samora asked what the ISR percentage would be. Building Official Law advised that it
would be fifty percent and that we still have the provision for a ten percent or greater permeable
paver, which is its own separate calculation.

Vice Mayor Rumrell said Building Official Law had mentioned in the past about getting rid of the
height side of that and the thirty-five feet. He said that whether it is a two-story or a three-story,
the medium density would take care of that itself. Building Official Law agreed and said that the
Land Development Code is very clear about the thirty-five-foot height for residential and
commercial.

Commissioner George said that cne of her concerns was the setbacks because this survey showed
a 3.6-foot easterly setback and she asked to clarify whether it would be grandfathered or
applicable. Building Official Law advised that because of the age of the structure, it is a non-
conforming structure and that the new building would need to come into conformance with the

9



Land Development Code. Commissioner George asked for clarification of the front setback.
Building Official Law advised that the front is a twenty-foot setback, which was changed last year.
Commissioner George said that the front and back are both twenty-foot setbacks and the sides
are both seven and a half foot setbacks. Building Official Law said yes and that whatever is
proposed would comply with the Land Development Cede.

Commissioner George asked if it was typical with these applications for the Commission to receive
the actual structure being proposed. Building Official Law said that he believed that former Mayor
England had asked in 2018 for the change. He said that they have been submitted but the problem
with it is that you would be asking the applicants to spend thousands of dollars on secmething that
might not be approved. He said that the Conditional Use is solely for the construction of a single-
family residence in a commercial sector, which is the way the Code is written, but as the
Commission, you have the authority to order any changes to the Code. He said that we are stating
in the order that we want to follow the medium density zoning districts, which brings the full Land
Development Code into action and if we need to make a Code change, then we just need
direction. He said that in his personal epinion, asking someone to spend thousands of dollars to
generate elevations might not be in the best interest.

Mayor Samora said that the conceptual plan is good because we can wrap our minds around
something but that it begins to become a slippery slope if we asked to present a plan because
there may be deviations from it, and we are not really an architectural review board. He said that
he is actually uncomfortable reviewing a plan. Commissioner Sweeny agreed and said that she
would prefer to let the Building Official and his staff do their jobs. Building Official Law agreed and
said that two people on his staff are probably the only other people in the City, besides himself,
that can actually read and implement the Land Development Code.

Commissioner Morgan asked if any of the opposition was due to the fact that the property was
zoned commercial because she had seen that as an issue before. She said that she called Ms.
Miller and asked how it could be zoned commercial when there is a residential structure on it,
which was a red flag to her before she ever reviewed it. She said that there are so little commercial
properties, so why would we be turning another commercial property into a residential property.
She said that Ms. Miller informed her that it was built so long ago. She said that it is already
essentially what they are asking for and she asked if there were any comments at the Planning
and Zoning Board meeting. Building Official Law advised that the three individuals that did not
support this solely did not want the extra restriction of the second floor. He advised that several
years ago there were healthy debates that ensued at multiple boards discussing a single
commercially zoned lot being developed for commercial, which has been proven time and time
again to be nearly impossible because of the size of the lot, our parking requirements including a
handicapped parking spot, which eats up 17x20 foot, and then you wind up with stormwater
drainage issues because it is commaercial and that is when we get the engineers invalved. He said
that a single lot is very hard to develop commercially.

Commissicner Sweeny said that the location seemed out of place to be commercial and that it
felt more residential. Building Official Law advised that it is a residential sector down that street
and that he has not received or been made aware of any comments against it.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comment.

George O’Brien, 6 10™ Street, St. Augustine Beach, FL, said that he would love to have it in the
minutes so that SEPAC could talk about the water runoff on Thursday; he is in construction and
real estate and some SEPAC members have asked what new construction is out there; he
renovated his place on 10" Street and there is a ton of runoff from neighbors so he had to put
gutters and pop-outs in; we should make sure that new censtruction does its runcff responsibly

10



and also put something in place for when pecple want to sell or get a permit for their home, that
it should be a requirement to put gutters in because it is really important; to make it known for
the minutes that the City needs something for water runoff, that new builds must have gutters
and downspouts, that properties going through permitting or being sold should be required to be
done ahead of time; where he is from, when you buy a place that has a messed up sidewalk, you
must fix it as the new owner before they will give you occupancy permits so it may be a way for
the City to handle the water runoff with the selling the properties.

Mayor Samora thanked Mr. O’Brien for his comments and said that the City is always trying to
improve the Code and he asked the Building Official to bring anything that he felt could be
improved upon regarding Mr. O’Brien’s comments to the Commission. Building Official Law
advised that they are investigating the Land Development Code for the need to mandate gutters
on two- and three-story buildings and also if there is a one-foot disparity such as on the west side
of A Street. He advised that he had been working with the prior Public Works Director and would
now be working with the Engineering Director to discuss the need for permanent retaining walls
if there is a one-foot disparity and not relying on slopes, which work when they are new but would
not work in twenty years. He said as far as mandating on a house sale for gutters, he did not think
it would be legal or prudent. He advised that the Building Code does affect drainage for residential
in one section of Chapter 4, which states that if you cannot get ten feet and six inches down then
you would have to provide a swale, which we are really starting to look at on the building side,
but to keep in mind that the building plan reviewer cannot review for zoning or any other code
and could only implement the Florida Building Code the way that it is written. If we make the
change, then we need to change the Land Development Code and we are currently locking for
gutters and possibly permanent retaining walls. He said that he does not see how we would ever
have the legal authority to go onto a property that is being sold and require it. If we were the
historical district or something of that magnitude you might have more leeway.

Mayor Samora asked to get back to the matter at hand.

Motion: to approve a conditional use permit to construct a single-family residence in a
commercial land use district at 14 D Street, Lot 15, Block 36, Coquina Gables Subdivision, that
meets the requirements of medium density zoning. Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by
Commissioner Sweeny. Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samora advised that we are basically taking the recommendatien of the Planning and
Zoning Board but not the recommendation to limit it to two stories. Commissioner George advised
for the record that it was only the second part of the Board’s recommendation, “compliance with
regulations for new single-family residential construction in medium density residential land use
districts”,

Building Official Law said that one thing they did in 2018 was to limit overhangs. They used to be
able to go out three feet and were shedding water way out and the change stopped the water
from going where we did not want it to go.

Commissioner George suggested that the Building Official should work on a Code amendment to
address the need for gutters. Building Official Law advised that he has already been thinking about
it and that it would simply be that houses that are two stories or greater shall have a gutter system
installed with the final destination of water approved by the Planning and Zoning review and that
he would recommend a six-inch gutter, which is the standard size. He said that he would probably
be presenting it at the next Planning and Zoning Board meeting and that the Commission would
see it soon after.

Mayor Samora moved on to ltem X.2.

11



Xl

Xl

2. Ordinance 23-05, Second Reading, to Adopt St. Johns County Five-Year Facilities Work Plan

{Presenter: Brian Law, Building Official)

Building Official Law advised every year this gets adopted, we have no public schools in our
jurisdiction, and St. Johns County is not going to build a school on a barrier island. However, we
are part of the County, our children go to those schools, so we are required to do this. He advised
that we are also going to be amending our capital projects, which is important because it allows
us to apply for certain grants and get points, which is a big aspect of this. He said that page one in
the agenda books is the proposed ordinance, and we are asking that it be approved as written.

Mayor Samora said that the report they submitted this time broke out any improvements to the
school facilities that would impact our residents, which was nice, and he would like to see them
continue to do that.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comment. Being none, he closed Public Comment.

Commissioner George asked if Section 3 of the ordinance, “Adoption of Additional Capital
Facilities”, would tie the City’s hands on any of these projects. Building Official Law advised that
he did not believe it would tie the City’s hands at all because you could amend this Section any
time you want, and this just allows us to apply for grants and we get extra points in our ranking
systems. He advised that these are all projects everyone is aware of, and have been on the City’s
radar for a long time. Commissioner George asked if we get additional points when it is in an
ordinance form. Building Official Law advised once it is adopted and said that it is his
understanding that if Public Waorks or Engineering applies for certain grants, this would be part of
it. City Manager Royle advised it is considered part of the Comprehensive Plan because it amends
the Capital Improvement element, so it strengthens our grant applications. Commissioner George
asked if it is typically in an ordinance format because she did not recall that. City Manager Royle
said it has always been done in an ordinance.

Mayor Samora asked the City Attorney to read the preamble. City Attorney Blocker did so.

Motion: To approve Ordinance 23-05. Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by Commissioner
Sweeny. Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samora meoved on to ltem XI.

CONSENT

(Note: Consent items can be approved by one motion and vote unless a Commissioner wants to
remove an item for discussion and a separate vote)

Re-Appointment of Comnrehensive Planning and Zoning Board Members to Three-Year Term: R.
Connor Dowling, Hester Longstreet, and Victor Sarris

Approval for City Manager to Sign 1% Amendment to the Interiocal Agreement between the
County and the City for Law Enforcement Services

Motion: To approve the Consent Agenda. Moved by Vice Mayor Rumrell, Seconded by
Commissioner Sweeny. Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item XIi.

OLD BUSINESS

Expiration of Natural Gas Franchise Agreement: Request by TECO Peoples Gas System to Renew
{Presenter: Max Royle, City Manager)

12



City Manager Royle advised that fifteen years ago the Commission at that time approved a fifteen-
year franchise agreement with TECO to provide natural gas service in the City. He said that TECO
constructed a pipeline down A1A Beach Boulevard, and he believed that a number of businesses
are connected to it. The original franchise is up for renewal and per his phone conversation with
TECO, they indicated that they would iike to have a thirty-year franchise, which is what they
originally asked for in 2008. He said that it would be up to the Commission whether to agree to a
thirty-year franchise agreement or to continue with the current fifteen-year franchise agreement.
He said that his cover memo noted some slight differences between the original agreement and
the proposed agreement, but he did not know if they were relevant and that he did not see
anything that raised any alarms. He said that he also noted in his memo the franchise fees that
TECO has given the City over the past three fiscal years, which is not an enormous amount of
moeney, but everything helps. He advised that a TECO representative is here to answer questions.

lason Roth, TECO Peoples Gas Northeast Florida External Affairs Manager, 3712 Pine Street,
Jacksonville, FL, said that TECO has a great relationship with the City and would like to continue
that. He said the reascn they typically ask for a thirty-year franchise agreement is because they
are a regulated company, and they make decisions on capital investments based on stability and
being able to recoup through rates. The longer term that we can predict, the more apt we are to
invest. He said that he would be happy to answer any questions.

Mayor Samora asked the City Manager if the things he pointed out in the contract were
addressed, such as the thirty-year term and the increased insurance from $1 million to $2 million
per incident. City Manager Royle advised that the insurance increase was recommended by our
insurance company and that he thought that he sent the information to TECQ. Mr. Roth said that
he did receive it and that if it is the pleasure of the Commission to amend the insurance to $2
million, that TECO is amenable to that. He advised that TECO has 136 franchise agreements across
Florida and that some have $2 million insurance, and some have $1 million insurance.

Commissioner Sweeny said that this type of franchise agreement is new to her, and she asked
what the City’s role is and how it works. Mr. Roth advised that there is a little bit of a
misconception of what a franchise agreement is. He said that it is not a right to serve, this is our
territory and TECO has been serving this area for a very long time, which is typically under the
jurisdiction of the Florida Public Service Commission. This is an agreement between TECO and the
municipality on the standards of operating and how we would access the right-of-way, the
permitting, and the requirements, which is just a mutual understanding mainly to stabilize our
operations and that they collect a franchise fee from their customers, which is dictated through
the franchise agreement and remitted back to the municipality. Commissioner Sweeny asked if
the entire franchise fee was just a passthrough or do they keep any of it. Mr. Roth advised that it
is a passthrough. Commissioner Sweeny asked if TECO served residential as well. My, Roth said
that they serve both residential and commercial and they have sixty-five accounts but that he did
not know what the breakdown was. Commissioner Sweeny asked if TECO was the only natural gas
provider on the island. Mr. Roth said yes, and typically natural gas companies are a manopoly,
and they are regulated by the Florida Public Service Commission, which is more for the standard
of safety operations because we would not want another company’s gas lines crossing ours.

Commissioner Morgan asked what the benefit would be to the City to have the franchise
agreement be longer than fifteen years. She said that she is not opposed to it but that it is so far
out, and we do not know what we will need in thirty years, which is her only reason for hesitation
and not feeling comfortable that it is what we should do. City Manager Royle advised that the
only value would be if we wanted to lock them in for thirty years. He said that since TECO has
spent a lot of money putting in all the gas lines, etc., that the chances are that they are here to
stay until it becommes a financial burden or not feasible for them to stay. He said that they are

13



finding it financially feasible to stay because they want to renew the franchise agreement, but he
is not sure whether it is beneficial to the City or not. Mr. Roth advised that they are a regulated
utility, they are capped for their rates, and must go to the Florida Public Service Commission to
ask for rate increases. He said their infrastructure investments are capital expenditures they make
based on long-term predictability, so they are not looking at fifteen years they are looking at fifty
years, The longer they can have that predictability when we are looking at where to spend capital,
that they would look towards the areas that are easier to work with and more predictable. He
advised that TECO already made a huge investment in the line that goes down AlA Beach
Boulevard and they would like to continue to grow the business and residential base in the City
and that a thirty-year agreement would help them do that but that it is entirely up to the
Commission and there are a number of ways that they could work it. He said that TECO is asking
for a thirty-year franchise agreement but that they would be willing to discuss other options.

Vice Mayor Rumrell pointed out from the City Manager’s memo that TECO paid the City $2,058 in
FY 2020, it jumped to $3,096 in FY 2022, etc. and he asked how they base their revenue on that.
Mr. Roth said that the revenue is the six percent collection on gross sales from our customers, so
if usage goes up, then the revenue would go up, but there is a pretty consistent use, which does
not typically go down. He said that businesses and residences use gas for different reasons, and
it could be affected by the weather as well.

Commissioner George asked if TECC has current plans to expand into residential communities
along the Boulevard. Mr. Roth said that TECO currently comes down the main AlA Beach
Boulevard thoroughfare, and that they do extend where they can. Since TECO is regulated by the
Florida Public Service Commission, any extension that they have would need to meet their
feasibility standards because all of their customers are essentially paying for whatever capital they
are expending. He said that if there is a request to extend a main into a residential area, as long
as it is feasible, they would be happy to do it. He said that some neighborhoods organize
themselves and ask TECO to extend their lines into their neighborhood, hut it is really hard to go
into established neighborhoods and deal with the remediation factors for extending the mains,
but they are happy to do it whenever they are asked to.

Commissioner George asked him to forward the information and a contact that citizens could
reach out to if their neighborhood wanted to begin that process. Mr. Roth advised that the City
Manager could forward his contact information and people could contact him directly.
Commissioner George asked the City Manager to forward the information to all the
Commissioners. City Manager Royle agreed. Commissioner George said that she heard that TECO
would extend for businesses but not for residents. Mr. Roth advised that it would all come down
to the feasibility factors and that a typical restaurant could be anywhere from 15,000 and 35,000
therms a year usage whereas a typical home is around 700 therms. The amount of main that you
can extend is capped at the amount of cost and typically it is about $1 per cost of therm of usage
sa $700 does not get you that much.

Commissioner Sweeny asked what the other homes that are not on the Boulevard might be using.
Mr. Roth advised that if they are not on main, they could be using a third-party gas distributor
such as propane, Amerigas, etc.

Commissioner George asked if the six percent was negotiable. Mr. Roth advised that it is their
standard percentage that they use across the board but that different commissions have different
philosaphies and some like it lower to lessen the impact on their customers or higher to increase
their revenues. Commissioner George asked if the six percent gets passed on to the customer.
Mr. Roth said yes.

14



Commissioner Sweeny asked if the City Attorney reviewed the franchise agreement. City Attorney
Blocker advised that they have reviewed it.

Commissioner George asked if the insurance cost was also passed on to the customers in the
individual jurisdiction. Mr. Roth advised that it is part of TECO's overall rate base.

Commissioner Sweeny said that we are discussing increasing the insurance from 51 million to 52
million and she asked what TECO's immunity cap was that they are regulated under. Mr. Roth said
that he was not sure. Commissioner Sweeny said that most public entities probably have around
a $2 million liability cap. Mr. Roth advised that they are not immune because they are a private,
investor-owned utility company. Commissioner Sweeny asked if something were to occur would
a claims bill come into play. Mr. Roth said that it is only used for public entities that fall under the
immunity statutes.

Mayor Samora said that the Commission had a few things to sort out such as the insurance
increase from 51 million to $2 million and the term of the agreement. He advised that there was
one other thing that has not been addressed, which is a change to the contract to have the permit
fees absorbed by the franchise fee. Mr. Roth advised that it is six in one and half a dozen in the
other because in the current franchise agreement they less any permit fees from the collectables
that they then remit to the City and this change would just be putting it up front and waiving the
permit fees. He said that it is already standard practice, it is just worded differently. He said that
there are a lot of different philosophies, and we are investing in infrastructure and the expansion
of services. Mayor Samora said that he did not have any problem with that.

Commissioner George said that she thought that the insurance should be $2 million because $1
million does not cover a lot and then there is the multi-person cap for single claim. Commissioner
Sweeny asked if the insurance company had a recommendation on the multi-person claim
because it was set at five. Commissioner George said that it was one per person, five per claim,
sO maybe it is two and ten. City Manager Royle said that he did not believe that the insurance
company gave a recommendation for that. Commissioner Sweeny asked if TECO would be okay
with that. Mr. Roth said that he would be okay with the raise to 52 million but if the City’s desire
is to raise the “per incident” cap, that he would have to go back to TECO for an answer.

Mayor Samora said that we currently have a fifteen-year term and that they are asking for a thirty-
year term. Vice Mayor Rumrell said that he is inclined to go with a fifteen-year term with a five-
year renewal that will give then up to twenty years. Commissioner Sweeny said that she was good
with the automatic renewal.

Mr. Roth asked for three successive five-year renewals with some sort of provision of notice,
which would make it thirty years all together and, after fifteen years, there would be the option
to amend, change, or negotiate every five years after that. Commissioner Sweeny asked for the
City Attorney’s input. City Attorney Blocker advised that it is fairly routine, and you could have a
built-in notice requirement and then the Commission could take action or renegotiate, etc. He
said that it is fairly standard, and it would be appropriate. Commissioner George said what is the
point, is it simply rubber stamping it so they could unilaterally extend it, or would it still allow for
review of future Commissions. City Attorney Blocker advised that it would still allow for review.
The party would notice the Commission, the Commission could then look at the terms and see if
there are any modifications or negotiations. Mr. Roth advised that we could do a ten-year term
with two successive ten-year terms but that our goal would be to have something in place for
thirty years and that the Commission could review it at any time.

Commissioner George said that if the Commission is going to have the opportunity to review it
and make adjustments as needed, that she would not have a problem doing a fifteen-year term

15



with another fifteen-year renewal option. Commissioner Sweeny advised that she liked a fifteen-
year term with three five-year renewal terms. Commissioner Morgan agreed.

Mayor Samora asked the City Attorney if this would need to come back to the Commission or
could it be approved with those changes. City Attorney Blocker said that he would prefer that it
come back to the Commission as the final product to make sure and go from there, but he was
not sure what timeline they were under. Mayor Samora asked if there were any time constraints.
Mr. Roth advised that the current contract expires October 1, 2023. He said that going fifteen-
years and then having to come back every five years seems a little time consuming on both TECC
and the Commission and TECC would prefer auto-renewals of ten years with two automatic
extensions of ten years.

Vice Mayor Rumrell said that his only concern is for future boards and that is why he preferred
the fifteen-year agreement with three five-year renewals. Mayor Samora said that in fifteen years
that Commission may decide to do another fifteen years and it would be up to that Commission.
He said that he is comfortable with it being reviewed after fifteen years and the sitting
Commission can decide at that point.

Commissioner Sweeny said if this is coming back to the Commission, she would like to ask the City
Manager to check on the group liability and bring back a recommendation. City Manager Royle
agreed, Commissioner George said whatever the industry standard is that would accompany $2
million per person.

Commissioner George questioned what would happen if this does not get approved, would TECO
have to shut down its accounts and be forced out of business. Mr. Roth said a franchise agreement
is not a right to serve, it is more of a mutual understanding between the municipality and the
company. He said if it is not approved, they would operate under the current agreement similar
to a landlord/tenant agreement and would automatically extend. He advised that as long as TECO
sends the City checks that get cashed, that the agreement stays in place, but they do not like to
operate that way and would prefer to have a new standing agreement. He said that if the franchise
were 10 be rejected fully and rescinded, TECO would stop remitting payments, which would not
change the way TECO operates, only the way it operates with the City, and would not be bound
by a contract.

Commissioner George asked if there was an exclusivity provision in the franchise agreement that
would contractually bind the City aside from the regulations that exist today. For instance, if the
statutory structure changed in twenty years for the servicing/management of utilities and we
have a long-term franchise agreement, is there anything in the agreement that would
independently preclude us from entertaining third-party competitors from coming into this
market. Mr. Roth said he believed there is some exclusivity provision in the agreement, but it was
bound to municipalities that want to get into the natural gas business, but that TECO's jurisdiction
is defined by the Florida Public Service Commission and if other entities work in close proximity
to our facilities, it would be a safety issue. Commissioner George said that there did not seem to
be much harm in granting this. Mr. Roth promised that TECO is here to serve, they are not going
anywhere for a very long time, and they would very much like to keep this relationship.

Mayor Samora thanked Mr. Roth for being open to the Commission’s input and said we would be
seeing this again next month. City Manager Royle advised that September’s meeting is on the 11",

Mayor Samora moved on to Item XII6.

Contract with City Manager: Continuation of Discussion (Presenter: Max Royle, City Manager)

City Manager Royle advised that, as the Commission requested, he provided his prior contracts
and asked what the Commission wants done as the next step.

16



X1,

iMayor Samora said the City Manager had several contracts for one year each and several for six
years each. He asked the City Manager if he had any insight into what happened after the last six-
year contract, such as going by the City Charter, etc. City Manager Royle advised that there were
four new Commissioners, which was unusual, and they had a very activist Mayor, Frank Charles,
whao convinced the Commission that the City Manager served at their pleasure and then there
was an amendment to the Charter. He advised that all the benefits he received were exactly what
the City employees got and there was no need to spell those out in a contract,

Mayor Samora advised that one thing specified in the old contracts was the amount that the City
Manager was paid but now your benefits and salary are the same as the rest of the City staff.
Mayor Samora asked if the Commission had any strong opinions one way or another and if they
still wanted to try to put together a two-year or one-year contract,

Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that he would like to do a two-year contract similar to the County’s,
which are a “fire at will or cause” situation if he remembered correctly. City Attorney Blocker said
yes. Vice Mayor Rumrell said that it gives us something with the City Manager that he could renew
if that is the will of the Commission, which also protects the City Manager if he were ever let go
and there would be some sort of compensation if it were not for cause. He said he believed it is
something that is good to have and as the City progresses, that future Commissions would look
for contracts. He said he believed the City of St. Augustine and the County have them in place and
it would be prudent for us to have one as well.

Commissioner Margan said that for future Commissioners, for the purpose of succession
planning, and for protecting the City manager, that she agreed with the Vice Mayor and that we
would be remiss if we do not have some kind of ptan in place.

Commissioner George advised that she is good with the proposal.

Mayor Samora advised the City Attorney to mave forward with drafting a two-year contract and
that the City Manager had mentioned at the last discussion that he wanted certain things included
in the contract. City Attorney Blocker asked if it would be an addendum to the current contract.
Commissioner George advised that there is no contract, it expired in 2006. Commissioner Sweeny
suggested starting over. City Attorney Blocker advised that he could absolutely do that and with
the Commission’s direction he could negotiate directly and report back. Commissioner George
said that she believed that we have an updated job description. City Manager Royle advised that
it was part of the material for the evaluation and that his job duties are spelled out in the City
Code and the City Charter.

Mayor Samora asked the City Manager if he had any boiler plate issues that he wanted included.
City Manager Royle said yes. Mayor Samora asked if he wanted to bring them up now or with the
City Attorney. Commissioner George suggested to provide a term sheet with the bullet points of
what his terms are so that we know, which ones were requested by the City Manager. City
Attorney Blocker agreed.

Mayor Samora opened Public Comment. Being none, he closed Public Comment.

Mayar Samora moved on to ltem XHi.7.

NEW BUSINESS

Resolution 23-06, to Support the Proposed Right to Clean and Healthy Water Constitutional
Amendment {Presenter: Ms. Nana Royer, Citizen)

MNana Royer, 6 Willow Drive, St. Augustine Beach, FL, presented a PowerPoint [Exhibit C] and
thanked the Commission for allowing her to present the resolution to the City. She advised that
she provided a packet for the Commission so this presentation would just be a review. She read

17



the bullet points from her presentation, and advised that Florida’s waters are in trouble, She
showed the current water conditions in Florida, such as the artesian springs that are polluted with
nitrogen, the decline in the flow of springs and rivers, 9,000 miles that are contaminated with
fecal bacteria, that Florida has the most acres of polluted lakes in the nation, the increased death
of manatees, red tide acceleration, etc. She said that Florida’s waterways are making headlines
and showed a headline from the New York Times titled “It’s Toxic Slime Time on Florida’s Lake
Okeechobee”.

Ms. Royer said that on the local level there are several segments of the Matanzas River and its
tributaries that are currently impaired for nutrients, fecal coliform, and/or iron, which means fish
and wildlife propagation is impaired. She said that Salt Run is also impaired for fish consumption
and shellfish propagation. She advised that this is a phenomenon that is local, State, and very
likely national. She moved on and said that there are laws for clean water, but they have not been
sufficiently enforced and that policies are very subject to interpretation. She said that if those
laws were working, then the State would not have issued 23,000 permits to pollute, which allowed
industry and agriculture to discharge pollution into the waters. We need protection from special
interests, changing political ideologies/circumstances, and the permitted harm to Florida waters.

Ms. Royer said that the summary of the amendment is that it creates a fundamental right to clean
and healthy water for all Floridians and enables us to hold the executive branch and its agencies
accountable when it violates that fundamental right. She advised that it would be placed in the
Bill of Rights section of the State Constitution, superseding the reach of the Governor and the
legislature, it would level the playing field between the special interests and the public interest in
clean water, it would make clean water a fundamental right, it would be indefeasible and could
not be overturned or compromised, and it would give the citizens the ability to participate in the
democratic process making it a tool in the protection if our waters. It would not guarantee that
all laws would be followed, but it makes for a better opportunity for that to take place. She said
that we need to educate ourselves and others regarding the state of Florida’s waters today and
encourage them and others to sign the petition. She said that they need 900,000 signatures by
the end of this year to get on the 2024 ballot and that a sixty percent passage on the ballot would
make it self-implementing. We need the official support and advocacy of our municipalities to
heip citizens protect what should be an inalienable right, which boils down to being about
enforcement, the democratic process, and accountability. She asked for official support for this
amendment and its campaign.

Ms. Royer said that she heard comments that this amendment would bring thousands of lawsuits,
but that three states, Montana, New York, and Pennsylvania have comparable laws and they have
not had a plethora of lawsuits spring up.

Mayor Samora said that the resolution would be the City voicing its support for the Constitutional
Amendment. Ms, Royer said yes.

Commissioner George said that before she referred Ms, Royer to forward this to the City Manager,
that she reached out and forwarded the draft to County Commissioner, Henry Dean, since he has
an extensive, career-long background in water management. She said that he was aiready aware
of the push for a Constitutionai Amendment, he reviewed it, and said that he was all in favor of it
and that he wanted to bring it forward to the St. Johns County Commission. She said that she was
relieved because she is always worried about unintended consequences and that she asked him
specifically about that and that he thought that the language was well drafted and that he
supported it.

Mayor Samora confirmed that the threshold to get this on the ballot is strictly 900,000 signatures.
Ms. Royer said yes and that they do not know for sure how many signatures they have so far, but

18



she would guess around 75,000. Mayor Samora said that the municipality portion of it has no
bearing for whether it actually gets on the ballot. Ms. Royer said no but that she hoped that it
would bring more awareness and by having the City give its blessing that it may have more
credibility with the general public.

Commissioner Sweeny said that this is a hard one for her because, who does not want clean water,
and that she one hundred percent supports the intent behind bringing this amendment forward
and asking for the City’'s support, but that the lawsuit issue is a concern. She advised that she read
the background materials and the amendment language and that she is a little concerned about
unintended consequences, which we see quite often from Constitutional Amendments. She said
that she also had concerns about creating another cause of action against the State and that
maybe the language in the amendment is not specific enough for what would allow a lawsuit
against the State for their inaction and that the person that brings the lawsuit does not even have
to be an affected party, which is also concerning to her. Her concerns are with the amendment
language and the legal definitions that are included and that she does not know enough or feel
comfortable enough with some of the legal questions to support it right now. She said that it gave
her comfort knowing that Commissioner Dean supported it because she puts a lot of faith in his
opinion.

Commissioner George said that if you read with clarity the'resolution itself, it does not articulate
support for this particular Constitutional Amendment. She advised that the closest it gets is that
it states, “the City acknowledges the impartance of clean and healthy waters in the State of Florida
and supports enshrining the right to clean and healthy woters in the Florida Constitution.”, but it
is not saying that it is supporting this particular Constitutional Amendmaent, which is why she felt
more comfortable with it. Otherwise, getting a particular amendment may not be something that
we would want to do.

Commissioner Sweeny questioned if the City had a policy and what had been done in the past
when it comes to taking opinions on Constitutional Amendments, which may not be our role to
do. Commissioner George advised that this is skirting around that by saying that access to water
should be a right and it does not speak to any particular draft. She said that the advocacy group
can use it however they want, similar to what always happens in the media, and that is where it
is coming from, but there is nothing in it that says that the City stamps this particular amendment.

Commissioner Morgan thanked Ms. Royer for her presentation and the materials that she sent in
advance. She said that she recognized that there are issues with getting legislation passed for
things like this. However, even though it does not specifically state that the City supports it, she
is not comfortable with trying to legislate through voting on Constitutional Amendments, it is not
the right way, and it is not being vetted through the legislature, which in itself is a problem. She
said that any time she sees a Constitutional Amendment, she puts a lot of time into researching
them, and often there are unintenticnal consequences even though there is a very good intention
here. She said that she believed in the cause of clean water and that she had read those articles
but that she could not support this herself.

Ms. Royer said that she was not sure if she included the quote from Ms. Jane West, an
environmental attorney, where she said that, “litigation is not working, lobbying is not working,
and that the only way she sees forward, is through an omendment like this.” Commissioner
Morgan advised that she read that and that she had worked with Ms. West in the past, and that
this is not a negative reflection on Ms. West or the cause, it is that she does not believe in this
method.

Vice Mayor Rumrell echoed both Commission George and Commissioner Morgan. He said that it
is hard for ane governing body to put forth effort for another governing body and that he did not

19



want to open a slippery slope. He said that he believed that all five Commissioners would agree
that we need to do better. Ms. Royer said that this is completely non-partisan because we all need
it. Vice Mayor Rumrell agreed but said that he also had a hard time voting for it. He advised that
he had the same conversation with Commissioner Dean, would it open up other things, are we
liable, and that he would ask the City Attorney’s opinion on it. City Attorney Blocker advised that
it is up to the Commission to decide on a resolution asking the City to take a stand on a very
worthy issue, but that there are some legal implications. He said that there are some examples
where other governing bodies have approved of them and others have not. He said that he did
not believe that if the City approved this that it would come back on you as a Commission, but
that the process is a little different because it is a Constitutional Amendment.

Mayor Samora opened Public Commaent.

Chris McDermott, 392 San Nicolas Way, St. Augustine, FL, said that he is here and wearing his
[Right to Clean Water] t-shirt and is a volunteer, not a paid solicitor, and has spent a lot of
Saturdays talking to the Commission’s constituents at that St. Augustine Amphitheatre and pier
events; eighty percent of the people that he spoke to, signed the petition; people recognize that
the legislature and the government do not always respond to the long-term vision, it responds to
the loudest voice at the moment, which is a failure of our society; this is an opportunity to
overcome cynicism and partisanship and invest in our future; it may not be the way that you
prefer, but we need to do something before we die because waiting for Tallahassee to do it is not
going to happen; telling your children that it is going to happen is not very honest; lets invest in
our people and the springs, lakes and estuaries, which are important to Florida and this is the
City’s chance to do it.

Nick Binder, 232 Big Magnolia Court, $t. Augustine Beach, FL, thanked Ms. Royer for what she is
doing for clean water and Ocean Hammaock; he spent over thirty-three years working for the State
of New Jersey enforcing and funding clean water; Florida is decades behind New Jersey and has
been run by big business; without this type of amendment, it will continue to be run that way;
you need to have some means for the citizens to get water pollution rights enforced; he appeared
in many courts, provided funding for municipalities, and fought against industries; there is no
question that there will be litigation but it is something that is needed and it is simply saying that
you believe in clean water.

Susan Brady, 121 14" Street, St. Augustine Beach, FL, said that water is our life, we live at the
beach; she remembered the red tide, which caused breathing problems; it is a right for everyone
in the world to have clean water, lock at what happened in Flint, Michigan; hoped that the City
would follow the people that live at the beach and support this clean water amendment so that
is gets on the ballot.

Mayor Samora closed Public Comment.

Commissioner George said that based upon her prior comments and her review of the text in the
resolution, that she did not believe that this is sidestepping or overstepping any political process
and that she is more than comfortable making a statement that, as an elected official, she believes
that access to clean water should be a right that the people can protect.

Motion: To approve Resolution 23-06. Moved by Commissioner George. Motion died for lack of
a second.

Mayor Samora advised that everyone expressed their belief in the cause and maybe not so much
the vehicle or the position of this body to weigh in on what another legislative body is going to
do. He said that there is a lot of support for your cause, and he asked how individuals would get
involved or sign the petition so that it could be on the record.

20



Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that he would not be opposed to having the City Attorney write a
resolution that the City could support because it is not that the City doesn’t support this, it is the
way that it is written as an amendment. Mayor Samora said that he heard some reservations for
going the Constitutional Amendment route, so the vehicle is more the issue and not necessarily
the cause, and that the City Attorney is more than welcome to take another stab at it. He said that
in order to help Ms. Royer get this on the ballet, people would need to sign the petition. He asked
Ms. Royer to provide the information on how people could get involved. Ms. Royer asked if the
Commission was in favor of the concept but not the amendment itself. Mayor Samora said that
they may bring a resolution back that expresses that. Commissioner George asked if the Vice
Mayor wanted to lock at it and make an amendment to it or do it outside of the meeting. Vice
Mayor Rumrell said outside of the meeting, and that he preferred that the City Attorney write
something and possibly pull some things from Ms. Royer’s amendment to support it. He wanted
to make it clear that he did not believe that any of the Commissioners were against it, they just
had reservations for the vehicle and that he is happy to do a resolution of some sort,

City Attorney Blocker said that it sounded like some of the reservations were about the call to
action, which we could improve on. He advised that this particular resolution calls for this body
to support a Constitutional Amendment and that we could look at resclutions that other cities
have done regarding clean water and bring something back to the Commission. Commissioner
Sweeny said that she would support something that made it clear that the City supports the
prioritization of clean water without being tied to a Constitutional Amendment. City Attorney
Blocker said that we would also look at a resolution that makes a policy statement and that it
would be a policy of the City to promote clean water within the City sn that way it would be inthe
control of the Commissicn.

Vice Mayor Rumrell suggested to have it come back in September to help support Ms. Royer's
efforts to get it on the ballet. City Attorney Blocker agreed. Mayor Samora liked the idea and said
that it is a good way to make some progress. He asked Ms. Royer to provide information for
anyone that would like to get involved. Ms. Royer said that people could go tc the website:
floridarighttocleanwater.org, then print and sign the petition, and mail it to the address on the
petition. She advised that they also have a table at the Ampbhitheatre every third Saturday along
with Genung's Fish Camp in Crescent Beach, which would accept petitions. She said that she also
had some copies with her and that anyone is welcome to sign it.

Mayor Samora moved on to ltem XII1.8.

Request from Northeast Florida Regional Council for City's Suggestions for Regional Priorities for
2024 L epislative Session (Presenter: Max Royle, City Manager)

City Manager Royle provided a list of priorities from 2022 [Exhibit D], which included support for
beach restoration, State financial suppaort for barrier island cities, and legislative actions to allow
cities to directly collect bed tax dollars to pay for services and other expenses. He said that what
St. Johns County adopted as their priorities did not include any of curs and that he did not know
what the Commission would like him to forward to the Northeast Regional Council this year.

Mayor Samora asked if everyone brought their lists. Commissioner George said that her list is the
same as last year. Vice Mayor Rumrell said that it is important that we come up with a legislative
list ourselves and that he had submitted some things from the City’s Engineering Department for
drainage, etc. and that he liked piggybacking some things off of the County, but that the legislature
likes us to ask them directly and that he liked what was currently on the list.

Commissioner Morgan advised that she looked at the County’s requests and highlighted the ones
that were the most important and she pointed out on Page 17, that their second Requested
Action, “Storm Water Trust Fund Pilot Program”, included the City. She said that she did not know

21


https://floridarighttocleanwater.org

if it would be separate from the three that we have listed from last year. Mayor Samora said that
he liked that and to make sure it is back on the list.

Mayor Samora said that he would support alternative modes of transportation and multi-use
paths. Commissicner Sweeny suggested a priority about acceterating the River to Sea Loop.

Vice Mayor Rumrell advised that he would like the City to support St. Jehns County and any
affordable housing that they may have because a lot of people that work at the beach cannot
afford to live here, which is important te support. Mayor Samora and Commissioner Sweeny both
agreed.

Mavyor Samora advised that short-term rentals seem to come to the legislature every year and
that it is important that we try to protect home rule and avoid the preemption of local regulations.

Mayor Samora cpened Public Comment.

Nick Binder, 232 Big Magnolia Court, 5t. Augustine Beach, FL, said that we talked during the
budget meeting about asking legislature for supplemental money for existing projects, which may
need to be in a general scope of language because the City does not have all the bids in yet; there
is no harm asking for the supplemental meney and that he cannot believe that the City is the only
community in Florida that had bids come in much higher; there was a lot of money from the
American Rescue Plan Act and that people did as he predicted, the bids would come in higher and
there would be less bidders; encouraged the Commission to put in the request for supplemental
funding for those projects that are under design and receiving bids.

Mayor Samora Closed Public Comments.

Commissioner Sweeny asked Engineering Director Sparks about the projects that we have
received State appropriations for and what projects he foresees that we would not be able to
complete within the allocated amount. Engineering Director Sparks advised that we took a look
at that during the budget meeting and the projects that we pushed out to FY 2025-26. He said
that he did not want to say that all of the $3 million dollars that was shaved from the budget were
for the projects that he is associated with but that a good portion of them were. He advised that
we are also adding the grant administration costs to the projects and that a lot of them increased
his funding estimates by fifty to one hundred percent. He advised that we could work around
some of that by phasing them like we did with Ocean Walk and coordinating with the grant
funding agencies for extensions, etc. and that we are getting ready to build the gravity portion of
one of the projects first and then move on to the pump station phase. He said that there are a
couple of projects that are through the design/permitting phase, but we are waiting to hear about
the funding for the construction portion and that they have submitted the package back to the
funding agency. He said that he did not know if that answered the question but that he could run
down each project and give the Commission an idea of what is in the budget for each one.
Commissioner Sweeny said that it would be helpful if he could send her a list of the State
appropriated projects, what was allocated, and his estimated total cost now so that she could see
the difference. Director Sparks agreed and said that the largest project right now is in the pre-
design/study phase for Magnolia Dunes and Atlantic Qaks and that he has a meeting tomorrow
with one of the project team members who solely looks for additional grant money. He said that
we are already forecasting a shortfall in the funding amount for the construction, even though we
have $1.2 million in appropriations right now. He advised that he had the numbers that she was
asking for and that he could condense them and put them into one table.

Mayor Samora asked the City Manager what was on the list. City Manager Royle advised that
three of them were from last year, to support alternative modes of transportation, the River to
Sea Loop in particular, to support the County's efforts for affordable housing, and not to preempt

22



XIv.

cities’ authority to regulate vacation rentals. Mayor Samora asked if everyone was good with that
list.

It was the consensus of the Commission to move forward with the list.
Mayor Samora moved on to [tem XIV.

Police Chief and City Manager: Discussion of Work Performance Evaluations {Presenters: Max
Royle, City Manager; Police Chief Dan Carswell)

This Item was moved to the September 11, 2023, Commission meeting.

STAFF COMMENTS

City Attorney Blocker thanked everyone for the good discussions tonight and advised that he
would get to work.

Police Chief Carswell thanked Commander Harrell for taking care of the City and the Police
Department in his absence last week while he was in southwest Florida at the annual Florida Police
Chief’s conference. He advised that there were a lot of good speakers and that the focus was on
mental health training for the officers and suicide prevention.

Engineering Director Sparks advised that they are nearing the end of the Ocean Hammock Park
restroom and improvements project and that there had been some discussion about possibly
having a ribbon cutting ceremony, which could be as early as September. He said that the 2"
Street project is progressing much better since the major adjustments last week and that he has
Faith that the extension/widening porlion should be wrapped up in a month orso, He said that he
is gathering more information and would keep the stormwater utility discussions going. The A
Street parking project’s design/permitting phase is at one hundred percent at that we would be
looking to bid it out soon with construction starting in the next six months along with Phase 1 of
the Ocean Walk project.

Mayor Samora asked if Ocean Hammock Park would be open by Labor Day. Director Sparks said
that he believed that it could open now and that we just have to pay the retainage and have the
City Manager and cthers sign off on it, which should happen this week. Mayor Samora asked when
he anticipated 2™ Street to be completed. Director Sparks said that mid-August was the tentative
completion date, but it would surpass that.

City Manager Royle said that Assistant Public Works Director Adams made a very good
presentation to the Port, Waterway, and Beach District to get us money for beach walkovers. He
was impressed with the presentation that he put together and that they were quite supportive.
He advised that Public Works Director Gatchell came up with an interesting idea for the problem
that we are having with the Ocean Trace/Sabor de Sal ponds and that he and the Engineering
Director are going to have a meeting on August 17" with any interested residents and that the
City Attorney gave him some good advice regarding the City’s involvement with emergency
pumping. He said that anything we do on the City’s end would not be the final solution and that
those residents would have to get themselves together and work out a solution such as what they
want to do, how they would hire expert advice, how to get the moeney, etc. and that the City would
support and assist them however it cou!d. He mentioned that he received a real estate notice in
the mail recently of “another proud sale” of a house at 11 D Street for $1.6 million. He said that
some people have a lot of money and can afford to pay our taxes.

Mayor Samaora said that there are a few reminders: SEPAC meets this Thursday in the Commission
Room at 6:00 p.m., Planning and Zoning meets on August 15™ in the Commission Room at 6:00
p.m., and that City Hall wilf be closed on September 4" for the Labor Day holiday. He advised that
the Commissicn would meet again on September 11% at 5:01 p.m. for the budget meeting and

23



XV.

6:00 p.m. for the regular meeting. He said that St. Johns County schools are back in session this
Thursday, to be careful driving, and to stop for school buses.

Mayor Samora moved on to Item XV.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Samora asked for a motion to adjourn.

Motion: to adjourn. Moved by Commissioner Rumrell, Seconded by Commissioner George.
Motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Samora adjourned the meeting at 8:26 p.m.

e

ATTEST: ' B
) e T

- T
Dariana Fitzgerald, City Clerk

24





mailto:Jason.S.Harrah@usace.army.mil












https://raJim..SV.fE


















https://wt,W.-ifi.bl
https://val~t.td
https://Orp11la1.l.i1













TO: Mayor and Commiss
FROM: Max Royle, City
DATE: August 7, 2023

SUB).: additional Information for Agenda item #8: Legislative Priorities

Mayor and Commissioners,

Commissioner Margan asked what were your 2022 pricrities. Here’s what | sent to the Northeast
Regional Council after your September 12, 2022, meeting.



Max Royle

From: Max Royle

Sent: Tuesday, September 20, 2022 12:48 PM
To: khaigh@nefrc.org

Cc: Max Royle

Subject: 2023 Legislative Priorities

Ms. Haigh,

Ms. Haigh,

in response to Ms. Beth Payne’s July 6, 2022, email that requested the City’s legislative priorities, the St. Augustine
Beach City Commission discussed the request at its September 12" meeting, and asked me to forward to you the
following three priorities:

1. Continued financial allocations by the state for beach restoration projects as Florida’s beaches are a critical
attraction and support for Florida’s tourism industry.

2. State financial support for barrier island cities to develop resiliency projects to meet the threat of sea level rise,

3. Legislative action either to allow cities to directly collect bed tax dollars to pay for services and other expenses
related to tourism, or to require counties to provide a percentage of bed tax dollars to cities to fund law
enforcement services and infrastructure projects that benefit tourists. '

Max Royle
City Manager


mailto:khaigh@nefrc.org

